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UNID STATES DISTRCT COURT
FOR TH MIDLE DISTRCT OF GEORGIA

Case No. 5:03-CV-0140-3-CAR

KERN FAMY ENTERPRIES, LLC, ).dba 
Instant Internet Empires, 

FEDERA TRE COMMSSION,

Plaintiff,

K4 GLOBAL PUBLISHIG, INC.,
dba 
Instant Internet Empires,

and

IRWI F. KERN, IV,
aka

Frank Kern

Defendants.
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fP8PB STIULTED FIAL JUGMENT AN ORDER FOR PERMNT
INJUCTION AN OTHR EQUIABLE RELIF

Plaintiff the Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission ("Commission ), commenced this action by

filing its Complaint for permanent injunction and other relief pursuant to Sections 6(a) and

13(b) of the Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act", 16 U.s.C. 46(a) and 53(b),

chargig that Defendants, K4 Global Publishing, Inc., Kern Famy Empires, LLC. and Irwin

F. Kern, IV, engaged in deceptive business practices in violation of Section 6 of the FTC Act



15 US. c. , in connection with the sae of business opportunities and business development

aids. The Defendants were served with copies of the Complaint in this matter on May 8, 200:3.

The Commission and Defendants have agreed to entr of this Stipulated Final

Judgment and Order for Permanent Injunction ("Final Order ) by the Court to resolve all

matters in dispute in this action without trial. Pursuant to agreement and stipulation, IT IS

HEREBY ORDER, ADJUGED AN DECREED as follows:

FININGS

This Court as jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case, and over all

parties hereto.
I /

Venue in this district is proper under 28 US.c. ~ 1:391(b) and (c), and 15 U.

53(b).

The Commission s Complaint states claims upon which relief may be granted

against Defendants under Section 6 and 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. ~ 45 and 5S(b).

This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case, and there is good

cause to believe it will have jurisdiction over all paries hereto.

This Order does not constitute and shall not be interpreted to constitute an

admission by Defendants that they have engaged in violations of any law or regulations, including

but not limited to the Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commssion Act.

Ths Order is remedial in nature and any payment made under the Order shall not

be consted as the payment of a fine, penalty, punitive assessment, or forfeiture.

The acts and practices of Defendants were or are in or affecting commerce, as

commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the "'- TC Act, 15 V. C. ~ 44

Entry of this order is in the public interest.



Defendants enter into this Order freely and without coercion, and acknowledge

that they understand the provisions of this Order and are prepared to abide by them.

10. Plaiti and Defendants have ageed that the entr of ths Order resolves all

maters of dispute between them arsing from the Complait in this action, up to the date of entr

of ths Order.

11. Defendants waive aU rights to seek appellate review or otherwse challenge or

contest the validity of this Order.. Defendants further waive and'release any claim they may have

against the Commssion, its employees, representatives, or agents.

12. Defendants have ageed that this Order does not cntitle them to seek or obta I /

attorneYs' fees as a prevai par under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 C. S 2412, as

amended by Pub. L. 104-121 , llO Sta. 847 , 863-64 (1996), and Defendants furer wave any

. rights to atorneys ' fees that may arse under said provision of law.

Definitions

For the purpose of this Order, the following definitions shan apply:

Defendants" means Irwn F. Kern, IV, a. a. "Fran Kern , individually and d//a

Instant Internet Empires, K4 Global Publishing, Inc. , Kern Famly Enterprises, LLC, as well as

their assigns, agents, servants, employees, or afJiates, and those persons in active concert or

paricipation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal servce or otherwise

whether acting directly or through any entity, corporation, subsidiar, division, or other device

unless specifed otherwse,

Asset" or "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or clai to



any real or persona propert of any Defendant, or held forthe benefit of any Defendant

, .

including, but not limited to "goods

" "

instruments

" "

equipment

" '

l1xtes

" "

general

intangibles

" "

inventory,

" "

checks " or "notes" (as these terms are defined in the Uniform

Commercial Code), and all chattels, leaseholds, contracts, mais or other deliveries shares of

stock, lists of consumers, accounts, credits, receivables, and cash, wherever located.

Document" is syonymous in meanng and equal in scope to the usage of the term

in Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Rule of Civil Procedure 34(a), and includes wrtings, drawings, graphs, chars

photographs, audio and video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations ITom

which information ca be obtained and translated, if necessary, into reasonably usable form I /

through detection devices. A draf or non-identical copy is a separate document within the

meaning of the term.

Business Opportty" meas any program plan, product, or servce that enables

or purports to enable a paricipant or purchaser to ear money.

Business Development Aid" means any program, plan, product, or servce that

assists or purports to assist a paricipant or purchaser to earn money.

Chain Marketing Scheme" means any program, plan product, or servce in which

the financial gains of paricipants or purchasers are primarily dependent on the successive

recruitment of new paricipants or purchasers into the program, plan, product, or servce

ensuring that at each step in the evolution of the program, plan, product, or servce, the majority

of participants or purchasers wil not make money.



CONDUCT PROHmITIONS

PROHImON AGAIST FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENTS

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that, in connection with the advertising, promotion

offering for sale, or saJe of any business opportnity or business development aid, Defendants and

any person or entity in active concert or paricipation with them who receive actal notice of the

Order by personal serce or otherwse are hereby restrained and enjoined from making any

express or implied representation or omission of material fact that is faJse or misleading, in any

manner, orally or in wrting, to any consumer, including, but not lited to, the following: I /

Any false or misleading representation that consumers who purchase Defendants

products are likely to earn substantial income ITom those products and

Any false or misleading representation that alJ consumers who purchase

Defendants' products can ear a substantial income ITom those products.

INJUCTION AGAINST PROMOTING A CHAIN MARKTIG SCHEME

IT IS FUTHER ORDERED that the Defendants and any person or entity in active

concert or parcipation with them who receive actual notice of the Order by personal servce or

otherwse are hereby restrained and enjoined from engagig, paricipating or assisting in any

maner or capacity whatsoever, directly, or in concert with others, individually or through any

business entity or other device, in the sae, advertisement, promotion, marketing, offering, or
:i':

provision of any cha marketing scheme.



ID.

INJUCTION AGAINST PROVIING OTHRS WITH
THE MEANS AND INSTRUMENTALITIS TO 

VIOLATE SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in connecion with the offerig for sale or sale of any

business opportunity or business development aid, Defendants are hereby restrained and enjoined

ITom providing to others the meas and instrumentalities with which to make, expressly or by

implication, oraly or in wrting, any false or misleading statement or representation of material

fact, including, but not limited to the following:

Any false or misleading representation that consumers who purchase certai
I /

products are likely to earn substantial income ITom those products; and

Any false or misleading representation that all consumers who purchase certain

products can earn a substantial income ITom those products.

IV.

MONITORING COMPLIACE OF SALES PERSONNEL

IT IS FURTHR ORDERED that in connection with the offering for sale or sale of any

business opportnity or business development aid, Defendants are permanently enjoined and

restraied ITom:

Faig to tae reasonable steps sufcient to monitor and ensure that all of

Defendants sales personnel, includig agents , representatives, employees, or independent

contractors, comply with Paragphs I, II, and III of this Order. Reasonable steps shal include, at

a minimum, establishig and maitag a compliance program which ind des spot, blid testing

of the ora representaons made by any representave or independent contrctor; spot checkng



of consumers to ensure that no misrepresentaons were made; and ascerting the munber and

nature of any consumer complaits concerng any marketig material used by Defendats or the

faiure of any product sold by Defendats to meel any representation made in any marketig

material used by Defendants. Defendants shall, for a period of five (5) year , submit lo the

Commssion, on an anual basis, no latr than fifteen (15) days after the aniversar of the date of

entr of ths Order, a sumar report indicatg their effort to comply with the requiements 

this Paragaph. These anual report shal be submittd to the Commission s Associate Director

for Marketig Practices at the address listed in Paragaph XI of this Order.

Failig promptly to investigate any cOnsumer complaint concerning any marketig I /

material used by Defendants or the faiure of any producl sold by Defendants to meet any

representaon made in any marketig matrial used by Defendants received by Defendants, their

successors, assigns, offcers, agents, servants, employees and distbutors, and those persons in

active concert or paricipation with them who receive actual notice of this Order and promptly to

notifY the consumer of the proposed resolution of the complaint and the reason therefore.

REDRESS AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

IT IS FURTHR ORDERED that

Judgment is entered jointly and severally against Defendants in the amount of

$634 222.45 , which represents the Defendants ' total sales revenue ITom any product known as

Instant Internet Empires" as stated in the afdavit of Defendant Irw F, Kern IV dated June 23

2003 and submitted to the Commssion; Defendants shall pay the Commission $247 275.32, On

or before the fifth (5 ) business day followig the date of this Order.



Upon timely making the payment provided in this Paragraph, the remainder of the

judgment shall be suspended.

All funds released pursuant to this Final Order shall be deposited into a fud

administered by the Commssion or its agent to be used for equitable relief, including, but not

limited to consumer redress and any attendant expenses for the administration of any redress fund.

In the event that direct redress to consumers is wholly or parially impracticable or funds remain

afer redress is completed, the Commission may pay any remaining fuds for such other equitable

relief (including consumer information remedies) as it determnes to be reasonably related to the

defendants practices as alleged in the complaint. Any funds not used for such equitable relief shall
I /

be deposited into the United States Treasury as disgorgement. Defendants shall have no right to

challenge the Commssion s choice of remedies under this Paragraph.

VI.

RIGHT TO REOPEN

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that

The Commission s agreement to this Final Order is expressly premised upon the

financial condition of Defendants as represented in the sworn financial statements provided to

the Commission and dated May 15 2003 and any amendments thereto submitted to the

Commission through June 20, 2oo which include material information upon which the

Commission relied in negotiating and consenting to this Final Order. Defendants state that

those financial statements and any amendments thereto are complete and accurate

representations of their financial conditions as of June 20, 2003. If. upon motion by the

Commission, this Court should find that any Defendant made a material misrepresentation or



omitted material information concerning their respective financial condition , then the Court

shall enter a modifed judgment holding that any such defendant is liable to the Commission in

the amount of$634 222. , which Defendants and the Commission stipulate, forthe sole

purpose of enforcement of this provision of the Order, is the amount of consumer injury caused

by Defendants. This amount, less the sum of payments made by all Defendants to this action

shall become immediately due and payable by any such defendant, and interest computed at the

rate prescribed under 28 U. C. 1961 , as amended, shall immediately begin to accrue on the

unpaid balance.

Defendants agree that the facts as alleged in the Complaint fied in this action I /
shall be taken as true for the sole purpse of any subscquentlitigation fied by the Commission

to enforce its rights pursuant to this Order, including, but not limited to, a nondischargeabilty

complaint filed in any bankruptcy proceeding.

Any proceedings instituted under this Section are in addition to, and not in lieu

of,any other civil or criminal remedies as may be provided by law, including any other

proceedings that the FTC may initiate to enforce this Order.

VII.

LITING OF ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the freeze against the assets of Defendants

pursuant to Section IV of the TRO entered by this Court on May 8, 2003 as amended by the

Order entered by this Court on May 22, 2003 and any subsequent Order of this Court, shall be

lifted for the sole purpose of transferring funds to the FTC pursuant to Paragraph V of this

Final Order, and thereafter dissolved upon transfer of all such funds.

VIII.



TRASFER OF CUSTOMER LISTS

IT IS FURTHR ORDERED that the Defendants are hereby permanently restrained and

enjoined ITom selling, renting, .leasing, transferrg or otherwse disclosing the name, address

telephone number, credit card number, ban account number, e-mal address, or other identifyng

information of any person who paid any money to any Defendant for any product known as

Instant Internet Empires" at any time prior to entry of this Order, in connection with the

advertising, promotion, offering for sae, or sae of any business opportnity or business

development aid (including but not limited to Instant Internet Empires),

. IX. I /

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIP OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that within five (5) business days of receipt of ths Order

as entered by the Court each Defendant shal submit to tIle Commssion a trthfuJ sworn

staement, in the form shown on Appendi A I1)M shal acknowledge receipt of this Order.

DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that for a period of five (5) years from the date of entry

of this Order, Defendants shall:

Provide a copy of the sumar of this Order attached hereto as Appendix B to

and obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of receipt of same ftom, each offcer and director

each individual servng in a management capacity, al employees and thid-par contractors

involved in responding to consumer complaits or inquires, and all sales personnel, whether

designated as employees, consultants, independent contractors or ot'herwse , with ten (10)



business days after receipt of ths Order, and thereafter within three (3) business days of .

employing any such person, for any business that any Defendant directly or indiectly manages

controls, or ha a majority ownership interest in, that is engaged in the sale or distribution of any

business opportty or business development aid, or assistig others engaed in these actvities;

Maita for a period of three (3) years after crearon, and upon reasonable notice

make avaiable to representaes of the Commssion, the origial signed and dated

acknowledgments of receipt of copies of the sumar of this Order, as requied in Subsecton A

of this Paragaph; and

Provide a copy of ths Order. to any person or entity to whom Defendants have I /

sold or provided the "Instat Internet Empires" product or any product contaed therein.

XI.

COMPLINCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in order that compliance with the provisions of this 

Order may be monitored:

For a period of five (5) years afer the date of entr of this Order, the Defendants

shal noti the Commssion in wrtig of the followig:

Any changes in the residence, mailing addresses, and telephone numbers

of any Defendant, with ten (10) days of the date of such change;

Any changes in the employment stas (includig self-employment) of any

Defendant with ten (IO) days of such chane. Such notice shal include the name and address of

each business that the Defendant is afilated with or employed by, a staement of the natue of the

business, and a staement of the Defendant's duties and responsib ties in connection with the

business or employment; and



Any proposed chane in the strcture of any business entity that any

Defendant diecty or indiectly manages, controls, or has a majority ownership interest in, such

as creaton, incorporaton, dissolution,. assignent, sale, creaton or dissolution of subsidiares, or

any other change that may afect compliance obligaons arising out of ths Order tb (30) days

prior to the effective date of any such change, or if the Defendants lear of any such chane less

than tb (30) days prior to the effective date of any such change, as soon as is practicable, but in

no evenllater than fort-eight (.1,8) hour prior to the effectve date of any such change;

. One h ndred eighty (180) days afer the date of entry of this Order, Defendants

shal provide a wrtten report to the Commssion, sworn to under penalty ofpetury, setting forth I /

in detal the maner and fonn in which the Defendants have complied and are complying with this

Order. This report shall include, but not be limited, to:

Defendants' then current residence addresses , mailing addresses, and

telephone numbers;

Defendants' then current employment and business addresses and

telephone numbers, a description of the business activities of each such employer or business, and

each Defendant' s title and responsibilities for each such employer or business;

A copy of each acknowledgment of receipts of this Order obtained by the

Defendants pursuant to Paragraph X; and

A statement describing the manner in which the Defendants have complied

and ar complyig with Paragraphs I, II, In, and IV of this Order;

Upon wrtten request by a representative of the Commssion, Defendants shal

submit additional wrtten reports (under oath, if requested) and produce documents on twenty



(20) days' notice with respect to any conduct that is subject to this Order;

For the puroses of ths Order,. Defendants . shall, unless otherwse directed by a

representative of the Commssion, identify all wrtten notifications to the FTC as provided in this

Order and mail them to:

Eileen Harngton, Associate Director
Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commssion

600 Pensylvana Ave. N.W - Rm. H-238
Washigton, DC 20580

For the purposes of ths Paragraph, "employment" includes the performance of

servces as an employee, consultant, or independent contractor and "employers" include any I /
individual or entity for whom any Defendant performs servces as an employee, consultant, or

independent contractor; and

For purposes of the compliance reporting required by this Paragraph, the

Commission shall communicate with Defendants through one oftheir designated attorneys

Willam W. Maycock or Gary D. Hailey, unless any Defendant o their attorney subsequently

notifies the Commssion in wrting to the address stated in Subparagraph (D) above that the

Defendant is no longer represented, in which case the Commission may communicate directly with

that Defendant.



XII.

RECORD-KEEPING PROVISIONS

IT IS FURTHR ORDERED that, for a period of seven (7) years ITom the date of entry

of this Order, in connecton with any business that any Defendant directly or indirectly manages

controls or has a majority ownership interest in that is engaged in the advertising, promotion

offering for sale, or sae of any business opportnity or business development aid, or assistig

others enged in these actities , Defendants are hereby restraied and enjoined from faig 

create and maita for a period of thee (3) year followig the date of their creaton, uness

ol..herwse specifed:

, /

Accounting records that reflect the cost of goods or servces sold, revenues

generated, and the disbursement of such revenues;

Personnel records accurately reflecting: the name, address, and telephone and

social security numbers of each person employed in any capacity by such business, including as an

independent contractor; that person s job title or position; the date upon which the person

commenced work; and the date and reason for the person s termination, if applicable;

Customer files containing the naes, addresses, telephone numbers, dollaT

amounts paid, quatity of items or servces purchased, and description of items or servces

purchased, to the extent such information is obtained in the ordinar course of business;

Copies of complaint and refund requests (whether received directly, indirectly 

through any third par) and any responses to those complaints or requests; and

Copies of all saes scripts, training materials, advertsements, or other marketing

materials.



XlI.

ACCESS TO BUSINES PREMISES

IT IS FURTHER 0 RD ERED that for a period of five (5) year from the dale of entr

of this Order, for the pwposes of detennnig or securig compliance with its provisions,

Defendants shal grt to representaves of the Commssion, with five (5) business days of

receipt of wrtten notice from the Commssion:

Access during nonnal business hours to any offce or facility storing documents of

any business that any Defendant directly or indirectly manages, controls, or has a majority

ownership interest in, that is engaged in the lldvertising, promotion, offering for sae, or sale of I /

any business opportty or business development aid, or assistig others engaged in such

activities. In providig such access, Defendants shal pennt representatives of the Commssion to

inspect and copy al docwnents relevant to any mater contaned in ths Order; and shal pennil

representaves of the Commssion to remove such documents so that the documents may be

inspected, inventoried, and copied, provided, however; that the Commssion shal retur any

document removed from Defendants ' business premises pursuant to th proviion with twenty-

four (24) hours of its removal: and

The opportunty to intervew, without restrt or interference, offcers, diectors,

employees, contractors, and agents, includi al personnel involved in respondig to consumer

complaits or inquies and al sales personnel, whether designated as employees, consultats,

independent contrctors or otheIWse, of any business to which Subsection A of ths Parph

applies, regadig compliance with the provisions of dns Order. Any person intervewed may

have counsel present. Provided, however, that noth in ths Order shal be constred to wave

any rights that a person intervewed pursuant to ths secton may have, or to requie such person to



submit to a request for an inteIVew. Provided furer, however, that upon applicaton of the

Commssion for good cause shown, the Cour may enter an ex paIe prder granting imediate

access to Defendants ' business premises for the pmposes of inspectig and copyig al docwents

relevant to any matter contaed in ths Order.

XIV.

AUTHORITY TO MONITOR COMPLIANCE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED diat the Commission is authoried to monitor

Defendants ' compliance with ths Order by al lawf means, includig but not lited to the

followig:
I /

The Commssion is authorized, without fuher leave of Court, to obtai discovery

ITom any person (including any Defendant) in the maner provided by Chapter V of the Âé¶¹´«Ã½

Rules of Civil Procedure, Fed. R. Civ. P. 26- , including the use of compulsory process pursuant

to Fed. R. Civ. P. 45, for the purose of monitorig and investigating Defendants' compliance

with any provision of this Order.

The Commssion is authorized to use representatives posing as consumers or

suppliers to Defendants, Defendants ' employees , or any other entity managed or controlled in

whole or in par by Defendants, without the necessity of identifcation or prior notice; and

Nothing in this Order shall limit the Commission s lawfl use of compulsory

process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 of the FTC Act, 15 C. 49 and 57b- , to investigate

whether Defendants have violated any provision herein or Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U. S. C.

9 45 , or any applicable rule or regulation promulgated and enforced by the Commssion.

XV.



FEES AND COSTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that each par to ths Order hereby agees to bear its

own costs and atorneys ' fees incued in connection with this action.

XVI.

RETENTION OF JUSDICTION AND ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

IT IS FURTHER 0 RD ERED that ths Cour shal reta jursdiction of this mater for

the purose of enablig the pares to apply to the Cour at any tie for such fuer orders and

diectives as may be necessar or appropriate for the interpretaon or modicaton of ths Order,

for the enforcement of compliance. therewitb, or for the punishment of violatons thereof. I ,/

XVI.

COMPLETE SETTLEMENT

The pares, by their respecte counsel, hereby consent to entr of the foregoing Order

which shal constitute a frnaljudgment and order in this matter. The pares furer stipulate and

agee that the entr of the foregoin Order shall constitute a ful, complete and fmal settement 

this action.

IT IS SO ORDERED

Dated: t.o 2003
C. ASHLEY RO
United States Di

ENTr 9!1

GreOry



SO STIPULATED:

FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

4n4Y'
Robert G. Schoshiski
Division of Marketi Practices
Âé¶¹´«Ã½ TradeCommssion
600 Pennsylvana Ave. N.W. - Rm. 238

on, D.C. 20580
(202) 326-3219

()(/i1b:r -; c 

FOR THE DEFENDANTS:

":G & RU

Suite 3100, Promenade II
. 1230 Peachtree Street, N .

Atlanta Georgia 30309
(404) 815-3587

. Date: (z.'e('Z

I /

For K4 Global Publishing, Inc,

u1i'
Name And Title:

"FfZrJL l6Yz

, p

.s/"&,,

Date:

For Kern Famly Enterprises, LLC :

Name And Title:

. IVAN

Date: 
CU-z 



APPENDIX A 

UNTED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDDLE DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

Case No. 5:03-CV-I040-3-CAR

. )

KERN FAMY ENTERPRISES, LLC, 

Instant Internet Empires, 

FEDERA TRAE COMMSSION,

Plaintiff

K4 GLOBAL PUBLISHING, INC.
dba
Instant Internet Empires,

and

IRWIN F. KERN, IV,
aka
Frank Kern

Defendants.

I /

Irn F. Kern, N, being duly sworn, hereby states and affinns as follows:

My name is Irn F. Kern N. My curent residence address is

. I am a citien of the United

States and am over the age of eighteen I have personallmowledge of the facts set fort in this



Afdavit.

I am a Defendant in the above-captioned case.

I received a copy of the Stipulated Judgment and Order for

Permanent Injunction, which was signed by the Honorable and entered by the

Court on 2003. A tre and COITect copy of the Order I received is appended to this

Afdavit.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the foregoing

is tre and COITect. I /

Irin F. Kern, IV

Executed on , 2003 , at (city and state).

State of
County of

Subscribed and sworn to before me ths day of

Notar Public
My Commssion Expires:



Appendi

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE MIDLE DISTRICT OF GEORGIA

Case No. 5:03-CV-0140- CAR

KERN FAMILY ENTERPRISES, LLC, 

Instant Internet Empires, 

FEDERA TRAE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,

K4 GLOBAL PUBLISHING, INC.,
dba
Instant Internet Empires,

and

IRWIN F. KERN, IV,
aka
Frank Kern,

Defendants.

I /

SUMY OF STIPULATED FIAL JUDGMENT AN ORDER

2003, Judge C. Ashley Royal of the United States

Distrct Court for the Middle Distrct of Georgia issued a Stipulated Final Judgment and

Order for Permanent Injunction and Other Equitable Relief in the above-captioned case.

That Order resolved all matters of dispute between the U.S. Âé¶¹´«Ã½ Trade Commission and the

Defendants, K4 Global Publishing, Inc., Kern Family Enterprises, LLC, and- Irwin F. Kern



Pargrph X of the Order requires the Defendants to provide a copy ofthe following

summar of the Conduct Prohibitions contained in the Order to each offcer and director, each

individual serving in a management capacity, all employees and third-par contractors involved

in responding to consumer complaints or inquiries, and all sales personnel, whether designated as

employees, consultants, independent contractors or otherwise, for any business that any

Defendant directly or indirectly manages, controls, or has a majority ownership interest in, that is

engaged in the sale or distrbution of any business opportunity or business development aid,

or assisting others engaged in these activities. The Order also requires the Defendants to

obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of receipt ofthe sumary to each person or entity to

whom they provide it.
I /;

If you have any questions regarding the Cour' s Order or would like a copy of the Order

in its entirety, you may contact the Defendant who provided this summar to you or the Âé¶¹´«Ã½

Trade Commssion at 1-877-382-4357.

SUMMAY:

Definitions

For the purose of the Order, the following definitions shall apply:

Defendants" means Irin F. Kern, IV, a.k.a. "Frank Kern , individually and d//a
Instant Internet Empires, K4 Global Publishig, Inc. , Kern Family Enterprises, LLC, as well as

their assigns, agents, servants, employees, or affliates, and those persons in active concert or

paricipation with them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise,

whether acting directly or though any entity, corporation, subsidiar, division, or other device

unless specified otherwise.

D. "Business Opportnity means any program, plan, product, or service that enables

or purorts to enable a parcipant or purchaser to ear money.

E. "Business Development Aid" means any program, plan, product, or service that

assists or purorts to assist a paricipant or purchaser to ear money.



Chain Marketing Scheme" means any program, plan, product, or servce in

which the fmancial gains of paricipants or purcha ers are primarly dependent on the successive

recruitment of new parcipants or purchasers into the program, plan, product, or service

ensuring that at each step in the evolution of the program, plan, product, or service, the majority

of parcipants or purchasers will not make money.

CONDUCT.PRomBITIONS

PROHmITION AGAIST FALSE OR MISLEADING STATEMENTS

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that, in connection with the advertising, promotion

offering for sale, or sale of any business opportunity or business development aid, Defendants

and any person or entity in active concert or paricipation with them who receive actual notice of

the Order by personal service or otherwse are hereby restrained and enjoined from making any

express or implied representation or omission of material fact that is false or misleading, in any

maner, orally or in wrting, to any consumer, including, but not limited to, the following:

A. Any false or misleading representation that consumers who purchase Defendants

I /

products are likely to ear substantial income from those products; and

B. Any false or misleading representation that all consumers who purchase

Defendants ' products can ear a substantial income from those products.

II.

INJUNCTION AGAIST PROMOTING A CHAIN MATING SCHEME

IT IS FUTHER ORDERED that the Defendants and any person or entity in active

concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the Order by personal service or

otherwise are hereby restraied and enjoined from engaging, paricipating or assisting in any

manner or capacity whatsoever, directly, or in concert with others, individually or through any

business entity or other device, in the sale, advertisement, promotion, marketing, offering, or

provision of any chai marketing scheme.



. Ill.

INJUNCTION AGAINST PROVIDING OTHERS WITH
THE MEANS AND INSTRUMNTALITIES TO

VIOLATE SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT

IT IS FUTHER ORDERED that in connection with the offering for sale or sale of any

business opportity or business development aid, Defendants are hereby restrained and enjoined

from providing to others the means and instrumentalities with which to make, expressly or by

implication, orally or in wrting, any false or misleading statement or representation of material

fact, including, but not limited to the following:

AIy false or misleading representation that consumers who purchase certain

products are likely to ear substatial income from those products; and

B. AIy false or misleading representation that all consumers who purchase certain

products can ear a substantial income from those products.

I /

Vil.

TRASFER OF CUSTOMER LISTS

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Defendants are hereby pennanently restrained

and enjoined from sellng, renting, leasing, transferrg or otherwise disclosing the name

address, telephone number, credit card number, ban account number, e-mail address, or other

identifyng infonnation of any person who paid any money to any Defendant for any product

known as "Intant Internet Empires" at any time prior to entry of this Order, in connection with

the advertising, promotion, offerig for sale, or sale of any business opportnity or business

development aid (including but not limited to Instat Internet Empires).


